

The City of Seattle

Pioneer Square Preservation Board

Mailing Address: PO Box 94649, Seattle WA 98124-4649 Street Address: 600 4th Avenue, 4th Floor

PSB 119/21

MINUTES for Wednesday July 21, 2021

Board Members

Kianoush Curran Sam Dawson Alise Kuwahara Day Brendan Donckers Audrey Hoyt Alex Rolluda, Chair Felicia Salcedo Staff

Genna Nashem Melinda Bloom

Absent

Lynda Collie

Chair Alex Rolluda called the meeting to order at 9:03 a.m.

In-person attendance is currently prohibited per Washington State Governor's Proclamation No. 20-28.5. Meeting participation is limited to access by the WebEx meeting link or the telephone call-in line provided on agenda.

072121.1 APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

May 19, 2021 Deferred.

072121.2 PUBLIC COMMENT

There was no public comment.

072121.3 APPLICATIONS

072121.31 **?ál ?ál**

108 2nd Ave S

Amendment to streetscape improvement in previous Certificate of Approval PSB25719 including additional landscaping and paving the alley behind the project with asphalt.

Megan Hegstad, Jones and Jones explained they propose an October 1, 2021 complete date. She proposed alterations to alley way and landscaping between two sidewalks. She provided photos of the existing conditions in the alley and noted a collection of various materials and uneven surface. She said this project will add utility connections including two new vaults and that the area of work has expanded from what was originally approved. She said now asphalt will be put in from building to building, the full length of the building. She said this will provide better drainage and will allow future refurbishment of the alley. Ms. Hegstad remaining cobble will be removed and salvaged. She said the alley had been affected by several projects over the years including a Seattle City Light project that included full restoration but has not happened. She said the only area that is primarily payers is at the Quintessa.

Ms. Hegstad proposed landscaping to a triangular shape of land in the 2nd Ave S public right of way between the property entry sidewalk and the public sidewalk. She said the right of way landscape was approved already. She said the plant palette would be the same as at the street edge and will meet the Green Factor, Pacific Northwest native plants the link to native story. She went over the plant palette and showed images of the Baldhip Rose, Warty Barberry, Creeping Mahonia, Maidenhair Fern and Sword Fern. She said the Warty Barberry will stay low and will grow to a maximum of $3-4^{\prime}$.

Staff report: Ms. Nashem noted the plans also adjusts the location of bike racks and the size of previously proposed planting beds. She said while no alley work was discussed in the previous presentation, the approved plans showed a thin strip and a square box in the alley as asphalt. However, there is more work needed and SDOT standards would require that the alley would need to be restored at least to the center line. The proposal is for the full width of the alley.

While the District Rules say that the alley should be restored with existing historic materials when available or another unit paver, the Board may consider the following:

The overall condition of the alley at present. This alley had been nearly intact with sandstone cobbles in 2006 when the Contessa project removed and relayed the cobble behind their building twice. Since then, there has been unapproved work in the alley with the cobble not restored. Most of the cobble is now missing except from behind the Contessa building. The rest of the alley is a mix of asphalt, concrete, concrete with lines drawn in the size of cobbles, and small patches of cobble. In 2012 The Board approved Seattle City Light to replace conduit in the alley south of this project. The Board had asked them to coordinate with one of the unapproved projects to restore the alley the full width. SCL said that there was not enough cobble to restore the whole width of the alley and was to come back with a restoration plan. That has not happened to date. The applicant has retired. When reviewing alleys eligible for the "Nord Design", which would retain the existing brick/cobble at the building edge out of pedestrian paths, weaving in new brick from Mutual Materials, and new stone. The Board thought that this alley should be eligible and that would improve the ADA accessibility more than an alley restored in cobble. There are no proposals for a full alley repaving at this time but

the project does have an alternative proposal to install just the new brick from Mutual Material in a strip along the edge of the building and asphalt for the rest of the alley the length of the project. However, this would be more difficult installation than all asphalt and if the full length of the alley were to be repaved with the "Nord Design" in the future, it is likely that that strip would have to be removed to implement the "Nord Design."

Note that the plans show some work on the sidewalk at the neighboring building. The areaway has a rating of substantially altered. I have reviewed the proposed plans, which identify that the areaway was built with the sidewalk separate from the areaway lid and photos of the interior of the areaway. The proposed sidewalk will be in-kind maintenance.

Mr. Rolluda said the application is straightforward and help him understand the extent of the asphalt.

Ms. Kuwahara Day asked where have removed alley pavers been stored in the past.

Ms. Nashem said in the SDOT yard.

Mr. Rolluda asked the grade at the triangle section.

Ms. Hegstad said it will match existing grade. She said there may be a future project to renovate / update Fortson Square.

Action: I move to recommend granting a Certificate of Approval for: Changes to the streetscape on 2nd Ave S including adding a new planting area. Paving the portion of the alley with asphalt for the length of the project with asphalt. All remaining cobble in this area will be salvaged and stored at an SDOT lot for future use.

The Board directs staff to prepare a written recommendation of approval based on considering the application submittal and Board discussion at the July 21, 2021 public meeting and forward this written recommendation to the Department of Neighborhoods Director.

Code Citations:

SMC 23.66.030 Certificates of Approval required

Pioneer Square Preservation District Rules

III. GENERAL GUIDELINES FOR REHABILITATION AND NEW CONSTRUCTION In addition to the Pioneer Square Preservation District Ordinance and Rules, The Secretary of the Interior's Standards for Rehabilitation with Guidelines for Rehabilitating Historic Buildings, and the complete series of Historic Buildings Preservation Briefs developed by the National Park Service shall serve as guidelines for proposed exterior alterations and treatments, rehabilitation projects, and new construction. (7/99)

Rehabilitation is defined as the act or process of making possible a compatible use for a property through repair, alterations, and additions while preserving those portions or features which convey its historical, cultural, or architectural values. (7/99) In considering rehabilitation projects, what is critical is the stabilization of significant historical detailing, respect for the original architectural style, and compatibility of scale and materials.

XIV. STREET TREES AND VEGETATION

London Plane is the preferred street tree in Pioneer Square, and the required street planting in Occidental Mall, its future extension, and all north/south Avenues. Throughout the rest of the District's street right of ways, if physical site constraints preclude use of London Planes, a tree similar in habit and form may be substituted, subject to City Arborist approval. For individual small parks and spaces, a different, complementary tree may be proposed as a signature tree for that area. (7/99) Median strips and permanent plant beds shall contain plants approved for urban conditions, combining evergreen shrubs with ground cover and, where appropriate, flowers. Hanging baskets with seasonal flowers are recommended.

XVII. SIDEWALK TREATMENT

A. Standards

Sidewalk paving and improvements shall be completed with one pound lamp-black per cubic yard of concrete, scored at two-foot intervals. This material shall be used for all projects of 1/4 block or greater size. On small projects, if it is feasible, sidewalk material may be selected as for all projects of 1/4 block or greater size. On small projects, if it is feasible, sidewalk material may be selected to match adjacent sidewalks in color, pattern and texture.

XVIII. ALLEYS

A. Alley Paving. Alleys are to be paved with unit paving materials. Three types are acceptable in the District: remolded paving bricks, cobbles, and interlocking bricktone pavers. Alleys should be repaired or re-paved in the original unit material when these materials remain available. All other alleys should be paved with remolded brick. The center drainage swale, peculiar to alleys, should be preserved as part of alley re-paving. Unit paved alleys should not be patched with any material other than approved unit paving.

Secretary of Interior's Standards

- 9. New additions, exterior alterations or related new construction will not destroy historic materials, features and spatial relationships that characterize the property. The new work will be differentiated from the old and will be compatible with the historic materials, features, size, scale and proportion, and massing to protect the integrity of the property and its environment.
- 10. New additions and adjacent or related new construction will be undertaken in such a manner that, if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the historic property and its environment would be unimpaired.

MM/SC/SD/KC 7:0:0 Motion carried.

Mr. Dawson said that next month would be his last month on the board with the Get Engaged program. He thanked all board members and said he appreciated the opportunity.

Mr. Rolluda thanked Mr. Dawson for his involvement and input.

Ms. Nashem said she will check on his replacement.

Mr. Rolluda asked if Mr. Dawson could stay on.

Mr. Dawson said he starts grad school in the fall, and it will conflict.

072121.4 BOARD BUSINESS

072121.5 REPORT OF THE CHAIR: Alex Rolluda, Chair

072121.6 STAFF REPORT: Genna Nashem

Genna Nashem Pioneer Square Preservation Board Coordinator 206.684.0227